ASHFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Notice of a Meeting, to be held in the Council Chamber - Ashford Borough Council on Tuesday, 21st January, 2020 at 7.00 pm.

The Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are:-

Councillor Ovenden (Chairman) Councillor Michael (Vice-Chairman)

Cllrs. Burgess, Chilton, Farrell, Forest, Howard-Smith, Iliffe, Krause, Ledger, Link and Mulholland

Agenda

Page Nos..

1. Apologies/Substitutes

To receive Notification of Substitutes in accordance with Procedure Rule 1.2 (c)

2. Declarations of Interest

1 - 2

To declare any interests which fall under the following categories, as explained on the attached document:

- a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI)
- b) Other Significant Interests (OSI)
- c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests

See Agenda Item 2 for further details

3. Minutes of the previous Meeting

3 - 6

To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of this Committee held on 12th November 2019.

4. Report of Budget Scrutiny Task Group

Report to follow

5. **O&S Work Programme 2020/2021**

7 - 16

Agenda Item 2

Declarations of Interest (see also "Advice to Members" below)

- (a) <u>Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI)</u> under the Localism Act 2011, relating to items on this agenda. The <u>nature</u> as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and the agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated.
 - A Member who declares a DPI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting for that item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted).
- (b) Other Significant Interests (OSI) under the Kent Code of Conduct relating to items on this agenda. The <u>nature</u> as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and the agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated.
 - A Member who declares an OSI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting <u>before</u> the debate and vote on that item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted). However, prior to leaving, the Member may address the Committee in the same way that a member of the public may do so.
- (c) <u>Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests</u> not required to be disclosed under (a) and (b), i.e. announcements made for transparency alone, such as:
 - Membership of amenity societies, Town/Community/Parish Councils, residents' groups or other outside bodies that have expressed views or made representations, but the Member was <u>not</u> involved in compiling or making those views/representations, or
 - Where a Member knows a person involved, but does <u>not</u> have a close association with that person, or
 - Where an item would affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her financial position.

[Note: Where an item would be likely to affect the financial position of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc.; OR where an item is an application made by a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc., there is likely to be an OSI or in some cases a DPI. ALSO, holding a committee position/office within an amenity society or other outside body, or having any involvement in compiling/making views/representations by such a body, may give rise to a perception of bias and require the Member to take no part in any motion or vote.]

Advice to Members on Declarations of Interest:

- (a) Government Guidance on DPI is available in DCLG's Guide for Councillors, at https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf
- (b) The Kent Code of Conduct was adopted by the Full Council on 19 July 2012, and a copy can be found in the Constitution alongside the Council's Good Practice Protocol for Councillors dealing with Planning Matters. See https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf
- (c) Where a Member declares a committee position or office within, or membership of, an outside body that has expressed views or made representations, this will be taken as a statement that the Member was not involved in compiling or making them and has retained an open mind on the item(s) in question. If this is not the case, the situation must be explained.

If any Member has any doubt about any interest which he/she may have in any item on this agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Director of Law and Governance and Monitoring Officer, or from other Solicitors in Legal and Depropracy as early as possible, and in advance of the Meeting.



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of a Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in the Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Tannery Lane, Ashford on the **12 November 2019**

Present:

Cllr. Ovenden (Chairman) Cllr. Michael (Vice-Chairman)

Cllrs. Chilton, Forest, Howard-Smith, Iliffe, Krause, Ledger, Link, Mulholland, C. Suddards.

In accordance with Procedure Rule 1.2 (iii) Cllr C. Suddards attended as Substitute Member for Cllr. Farrell.

Apologies:

Cllrs. Burgess, Farrell.

Also Present:

Cllr. N. Bell

Chief Executive, Economic Development Manager, Head of Corporate Policy, ED & Communications, Compliance and Data Protection Manager, Governance & Data Protection Officer, Member Services Officer.

198 Minutes of the Last Meeting

Resolved:

That the Minutes of this Committee held on the 24th September 2019 be approved and confirmed as an accurate record.

199 Quarter 2 Corporate Performance Report

The Governance and Data Protection Officer introduced this item and clarified that he would be overseeing the Report now that the Senior Policy and Scrutiny Officer had left the Council and owing to the cyclic change of Committee Meetings, there had been a shorter turnaround for this report to be produced.

He went onto say that new Key Performance Indicators (KPI's) would be adapted to fit with the new 5 year Corporate Plan in 2020 and he would like to streamline them to avoid duplicity within the Report.

The Report was then opened up to the Committee and the following questions/points were raised:

- A Member asked whether the targets for KPI08 (New Business Support) needed reviewing, since the activity rates remained low. The Economic Development Manager explained that the Council had a Service Level Agreement with the Chamber of Commerce and the KPI was related to the Agreement. A triage service had been set up and met quarterly with the Chamber of Commerce and the number of businesses coming through to that service had increased. It was hoped that the tracking of this service would also be improved. The Economic Development Manager was in weekly communication with the Chamber to work on improving take up levels. The Governance and Data Protection Officer added that the Report was not representative of the exact figures and the next Quarterly Report would contain more accurate figures.
- In response to a question regarding resettlement figures, the Chief Executive confirmed that this was in relation to Syrian families that had been relocated in Ashford as part of a government scheme. The Council were looking at a proposal to extend this scheme to a 5 year programme. A Member asked whether the Council resettled other victims of crime or vulnerable people and it was confirmed that they would, though this happened very rarely.
- A Member enquired about when the Committee could expect reports
 regarding some of the KPI's and topics that they had requested. The Head of
 Corporate Policy, ED & Communications advised that they were hoping to
 bring Homelessness and Housing to the February Committee, and Carbon
 and Commercialisation would hopefully follow thereafter. She added that it
 wasn't a good idea to change the KPI's since there was a risk of losing trends.
 The Chairman added that the KPI's were satisfactory as they were, but some
 more background information when receiving reports would be beneficial.

Resolved

That the report be received and noted.

200 Future Reviews and Report Tracker

The Compliance and Data Protection Manager introduced this item and explained that some updates had been added since the agenda was published. These included the Homelessness Reduction Act and Carbon Neutrality.

The Chairman commented that the Committee would need to review the Tracker and Programme of Work, and decide which topics to retain and bring forward for the coming year.

Resolved:

That the report be received and noted.

201 Resolution to exclude the press and public

That pursuant to Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, members of the press and public be excluded during consideration of this item as it is likely that there would be disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 where in the circumstances the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

202 Ashford College Update Presentation

The Committee then considered the exempt presentation and the Chief Executive and Economic Development Manager answered questions from Members.

Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: www.ashford.moderngov.co.uk



Agenda Item No:



Report to Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020/21

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked:

- 1. To endorse the proposals to update the O&S Reports Tracker.
- Consider if there are any new items that the Committee wishes to suggest.
 These will be assessed according to the proposed Scrutiny Topic Selection Matrix and will then be brought back to a future meeting.

Date of O&S meeting: 21 January 2020

Chair of O&S

Cllr N Ovenden

Committee:

Relevant Portfolio(s):

Summary:

Exempt from

NO

Publication:

Background Papers: Report of the Budget Scrutiny Task Group, O&S 21

January 2020

Contact: Abi Moffatt, Policy and Scrutiny Officer

abi.moffatt@ashford.gov.uk - Tel: (01233) 330394

Report Title: Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020/21

Introduction and Background

- 1. Each year the Committee is asked to suggest items that could be considered for future scrutiny. The tracker is then updated and a copy of this is attached at Appendix A. On this basis, the Committee's work plan for 2020/21 is formed.
- 2. Items have previously been kept on the tracker for long periods of time without a review of whether scrutiny is still required. Therefore, items have been recommended to be removed from the tracker due to the length of time passed and the changes in the Committee's membership. The tracker has been updated to reflect the date that each topic was proposed as an area of interest for the Committee.
- 3. The Committee usually looks at one in depth topic each year, for example, Wye3 Masterplan and Air Quality review, and submits an Annual Report to Full Council. It also considers suggestions made from the Budget Scrutiny Task Group and certain topics annually including the work of the Crime and Reduction Partnership, Safeguarding and monitoring of the council's performance.
- 4. This paper sets out the topics that are outstanding on the tracker and seeks the Committee's views. The Committee are also asked to consider if there are other topics that would benefit from scrutiny during 2020/21.
- 5. The process used to select future scrutiny topics has been considered during the review of the work programme for 2020/21. Members are asked to approve a developed approach to selecting and prioritising topics for future scrutiny review as outlined in this report.
- 6. It is recommended that once potential topics have been identified, they will be put through a topic selection assessment using the Scrutiny Topic Selection Matrix, which is also set out on this agenda (Appendix B) together with the tracker. The matrix is based on the criteria in the current Topic Selection Flow Chart which assists the Committee with evaluating the level of influence the Committee has over each new suggestion made, whether they are strategic or of public interest etc. The scoring element in the proposed matrix has the added benefit of providing a mechanism for the Committee to prioritise areas of interest for scrutiny and helps to ensure that the Committee focuses on topics that can make a meaningful difference.

Recent Scrutiny Suggestions

It is proposed these items remain on the tracker and are allocated to upcoming meetings in the 2020/21 Work Programme:

Homelessness, Housing

7. A review on homelessness has been proposed recently in a meeting of the Budget Scrutiny Task Group and as a response to one year following the 2017 Homelessness Reduction Act. If approved, there is scope for a report to be brought forward to the Committee over the next coming months.

The Delivering of Carbon Neutrality, Corporate Policy, Economic Development and Communications

8. In a recent meeting of the Budget Scrutiny Task Group, the issue of carbon neutrality was raised as an area where future scrutiny would be beneficial. The Council's Carbon Neutral Strategy is being produced and is expected to be finished in the first few months of 2020. The Committee may want to look in to whether the goals outlined in the strategy are achievable.

Current Scrutiny Programme

It is proposed that the following items could be removed from the tracker going forward, subject to the Committee's views. The current position is set out for each item below:

Kent Fire and Rescue Service

9. This issue was raised in May 2018 by the Committee in regards to a shortage of volunteer support for Kent Fire Rescue Service being noted at Tenterden. Due to the time passed since this topic was suggested and the change in Committee membership, it has been suggested that this should be removed from the upcoming programme.

Broadband provision and planning, *Corporate Policy, Economic Development and Communications/Planning and Development*

- 10. The issue concerning broadband was suggested in May 2018 by the Budget Scrutiny Task Group in regards to the council's work on delivering high-speed broadband to new and existing properties within the borough.
- 11. The Committee could consider removing this from the future work plan due to the amount of time passed, however, following recent changes in central government, the council's corporate policy team can keep watch for any relevant briefings and government announcements regarding broadband provisions.

Staff Resources, Legal and Democracy

12. In July 2019, the issue of staff resourcing in the legal service was requested to be considered by Budget Scrutiny Task Group.

Ashford Waste Water Treatment Works, Community Safety and Wellbeing

13. Waste Water Treatment Works was considered a future scrutiny issue in August 2018. This was initially requested in relation to the odours impact on the quality of residents' lives in Kennington and Little Burton Farm. This can be a topic revisited at a later date if necessary.

Accessibility concerns at Elwick Place, Corporate Property and Projects

- 14. The issues around accessibility at Elwick Place were raised in March 2019 and were requested by the Committee in response to concerns raised by the Ashford Access Group.
- 15. During last year, a representative from Ashford Access Group has been appointed to the Ashford Strategic Delivery Board. Therefore, accessibility concerns are being addressed and updated regularly through the Board.

Future plans for public transport, Community Safety and Wellbeing

- 16. In August 2019, it was suggested that the Committee look at the future plans for public transport in the Borough. This was requested by the Vice Chairman in regard to the use of low emission and fit for purpose buses in Ashford.
- 17. A 'Big 8' project is to look at the council's transport and infrastructure. Elements will also be covered by the carbon neutrality strategy. This is a wide ranging topic and so there could be potential to narrow the scope to a specific area of transport, if the Committee wished to do so.

Void Properties, Housing

18. Following discussions raised during scrutiny of the 2018/19 draft budget, the Committee has requested a report on work undertaken to address void properties in the PSL sector in July 2019.

Topic Assessment and Prioritisation

Current Approach

19. Previously, the Committee adopted a Topic Selection Flowchart (appendix C) that is put in practice when an idea for scrutiny is suggested. The flowchart questions different elements that are required for scrutiny and the respondent is taken through the flowchart depending on whether the

answer is yes or no. By the end of the exercise, the item is either rejected or considered a low/high priority.

Proposed Scrutiny Topic Selection Matrix

- 20. Whilst the Committee's current approach has been acceptable to scrutiny topic selection, it has been proposed that the current flowchart could be developed further to include more detail for Members.
- 21. Using key ideas from the Topic Selection Flowchart, the matrix presents a series of statements and allows you to input a score from 1-5, depending on how 'fitting' the statement is in relation to the topic being considered. Therefore, the topics with the best 'fit' will achieve the highest score and a more likelihood that the scrutiny review will be established. However, it should be noted that the Committee are still able to consider investigating topics that achieve lower scores, if they wished to do so as there may be reasons outside of the criteria for bringing a topic forward.
- 22. The matrix includes a 'review type' section that identifies what action the Committee wishes to take regarding each issue and so establishes a clear route for the work carried out by the Committee once the topic has been selected.
- 23. Subject to the Committee's approval of the matrix, a one year trial period is suggested in order to test the matrix as an evaluation tool for future scrutiny topics. Following the end of the trial period, a review would follow.

Next Steps

- 24. The Committee is asked to endorse the proposals to update the O&S Reports Tracker.
- 25. Consider if there are any new items that the Committee wishes to suggest. These will be assessed according to the Scrutiny Topic Selection Matrix and will then be brought back to a future meeting.

Contact and Email

26. Abi Moffatt, Policy and Scrutiny Officer abi.moffatt@ashford.gov.uk 01233 330394

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Report Tracker – 21st January 2020

Current Work Programme Date due to **Report Title Reporting Service** Scope of what is to be scrutinised **0&S** Corporate Policy, **Budget Scrutiny Task** 21 January **Economic Development** Presentation of the findings of the Budget Scrutiny Task Group for Group - Final Report and Communications/ discussion and endorsement by the Committee. 2020 Finance and IT Corporate Policy. Review of Scrutiny Report 21 January **Economic Development** A review of the items to be considered for future scrutiny. Tracker 2020 and Communications A review of the decisions made and action taken in connection with Community Safety 11 February Community Safety and the discharge of crime and disorder functions by the members of the Partnership 2020 Wellbeing Community Safety Partnership. The Committee operates as the designated Crime and Disorder Committee for the council. 11 February Annual update to the committee on the council's work on Safeguarding Update Housing safeguarding adults and children at risk. 2020 Corporate Policy. 11 February Information on what the Council has achieved through its decision Quarter 3 Performance **Economic Development** making; key performance data and wider contextual information. 2020 and Communications

Items for future consideration

	Date		
Report Title	proposed to O&S	Reporting Service	Scope of what is to be scrutinised
Kent Fire and Rescue Service – volunteer support	May 2018	Community Safety and Wellbeing	Requested by the Committee in regard to a shortage of volunteer support for KFRS being noted at Tenterden.
Broadband provision and planning	May 2018	Corporate Policy, Economic Development and Communications/ Planning and Development	Requested by the Budget Scrutiny Task Group in regard to the council's work on delivering high-speed broadband to new and existing properties within the borough.
Staff Resources – Legal & Democratic	July 2018	Legal and Democratic	Requested to be considered by the Budget Scrutiny Task Group
Ashford Waste Water Treatment Works	August 2018	Community Safety and Wellbeing	Requested by the Leader in regard to odours impacting on the quality of residents' lives in Kennington/Little Burton Farm
Accessibility concerns at Elwick Place	March 2019	Corporate Property and Projects	Requested by the Committee in response to concerns raised by Ashford Access group.
Void properties	July 2019	Housing	Following discussions raised during scrutiny of the 2018/19 draft budget, the Committee has requested a report on work undertaken to address void properties in the PSL sector.
Future plans for public transport	August 2019	Community Safety and Wellbeing	Requested by the Vice-Chairman in regard to the use of low emission and fit for purpose buses in Ashford
Homelessness	December 2019	Housing	Responding to the Homelessness Reduction Act – one year on.
Carbon Neutrality	December 2019	Corporate Policy, Economic Development and Communications	Carbon Neutral Strategy and action plan

Scrutiny Topic Selection Matrix	1. Represents a key issue for local people.	2. The issue is strategic and significant.	3. The topic falls within a community or corporate priority area.	4. Scrutiny of the issue will lead to effective outcomes.	5. Has the topic been covered elsewhere in other services. (Yes = low score No = high score)	6. Represents an issue of concern to stakeholders and partners	7. The issue is of community concern or there is a high level of dissatisfaction with one or more services.	8. The scrutiny activity is timely.	Score	Rank	Review Type
Homelessness	5	5	5	4	3	2	4	4	32	1	R
Carbon Neutrality	5	5	5	3	2	4	4	2	30	2	TG

Each of the topics are scored for degree of 'fit', e.g. 1 (low) to 5 (high). The reviews with the best fit achieve the highest score.

- 1. Represents a key issue for local people.
- 2. The issue is strategic and significant.
- 3. The topic falls within a community or corporate priority area.
- 4. Scrutiny of the issue will lead to effective outcomes.
- 5. Has the topic been covered elsewhere in other services? (Yes = low score No = high score)
- 6. Represents an issue of concern to stakeholders and partners
- 7. The issue is of community concern or there is a high level dissatisfaction with one or more services.
- 8. The scrutiny activity is timely.

Review Type:

Each topic has an indicated review type: Task Group (TG), One-off report (R), Member Briefing (B), Other (O)

Score	What the score means
31 to 40	The issue/item has a high likelihood of entering the Scrutiny Work Programme but should be prioritised according to score
20 to 30	Item/issue has less chance of gaining a place on the Scrutiny Work Programme and should be held in abeyance
Under 20	Item/issue should not normally gain a place on the Scrutiny Work Programme

Overview and Scrutiny - Topic Selection assessment

Topic under consideration	•••••	•••••
1. Does the topic represent a key issue for local people and is it likely to result in improvements for local people?	1	
		Yes
		No
2. Is the issue strategic and significant?		
		Yes
		No
3. Does the topic fall within a Community or Corporate priority area?		
		Yes
		No
4. Is it likely to lead to effective outcomes?		
		Yes
		No
Stage 1 (validity) assessment - reject any topic with a 'No' response to any of question	ons	1 to 4.
5. Will scrutiny involvement be duplicating some other work?		
		Yes
		No
Stage 2 (validity) assessment - reject any topic with a 'Yes' response to question	on 5	5
6. Is it an issue of concern to partners and stakeholders?		
		Yes
		No
7. Is it an issue of community concern or is there a high level of dissatisfaction viservice?	vith	the
		Yes
		No
8. Are there adequate resources available to do the activity well?		
		Yes
		No
9. Is the scrutiny activity timely?		
		Yes
		No

Stage 3 (priority) assessment
Topics with a 'No' response to any of questions 6 to 9 should be deemed LOW PRIORITY
Topics with a 'Yes' response to all of questions 6 to 9 should be deemed HIGH PRIORITY